RFP 13-16

DESIGN AND BUILD SIDEWALKS: HENSLEY ROAD, MOUNT VERNON WAY, PEACHFORD ROAD,
DUNWOODY PARK, AND ROBERTS DRIVE

January 17, 2014
Addendum #1:

1) Deadline for proposal submittals shall be changed from “January 24th, 2014” to “February 7,
2014”.

2) Deadline for questions extended from “January 10, 2014 to “January 24, 2014”.
3) Bonding requirements have been updated. See attached.
4) The Cost Sheet (Page 22 of 56) has been amended. See attached.

5) The City will make a determination on whether any of the streams or conveyances on any of the
sidewalk segments are Waters of the State and if so, then will determine their classification
(perennial, ephemeral, etc.) of them. If the streams are determined to be Perennial Waters of
the State, the Erosion, Sediment Pollution Control (ES&PC) plans are required to be sent to EPD
for review and approval since they are projects within 200’ of a Perennial State Water.

If any part of a segment falls within 25’ of a State Water, regardless of its classification, a State
Stream Buffer Variances would be required, which would also require EPD to review and
approve the ES&PC Plans.

The awarded Design-Build firm is responsible for obtaining an approved set of ES&PC plan even
if a plan has already been partially designed. The awarded Design-Build firm is responsible for
obtaining a State Stream Buffer Variance and any mitigation costs associated with the State
Stream Buffer Variance.

BONDING REQUIREMENTS
Each bid must be accompanied with a BID BOND (bond only: certified checks or other forms
are not acceptable) in an amount equal to five percent of the base bid, payable to the City of
Dunwoody. Said Bid Bond guarantees the bidder will enter into a contract to construct the
project strictly within the terms and conditions stated in this bid and in the bidding and contract
documents, should the construction contract be awarded.

The Successful Bidder shall be required to furnish a bond for the faithful performance
(PERFORMANCE BOND) on the contract and a bond to secure payment (PAYMENT BOND)
of all claims for materials furnished and/or labor performed in performance of the project, both
in amounts equal to 100 percent of the contract price.

Bonds shall be issued by a corporate surety that appears on the Treasury Department’s most
current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to do business in the State of Georgia.



Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Contract. If Contractor is a Partnership, all partners
shall execute Bond.

Responses to RFP Questions:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

Where can the attachments mentioned in the RFP be located?
a. The attachments have all been uploaded to Sharefile:
https://dunwoodyga.sharefile.com/d/see3c1c8d4684d0c9
Page 5 - Discrepancy in description of Mount Vernon Way sidewalk location Westin 1.1
and East in 2.1.1. (reviewing locations — it appears the sidewalk would be on the west to tie
to Withmere Close existing sidewalk.)
a. To clarify, the Mount Vernon sidewalk is to be located on the west side of the
roadway.
Are there any areas we can use boardwalks such as environmentally sensitivity areas?
a. The City will only consider paved surfaces, but would consider using pervious
pavement.
Where can we find plans for Roberts Drive?
a. See the answer for Question #1.
Due to grade issues with driveways will there be flexibility with meeting ADA requirements
for cross slopes?
a. Yes. Refer to sections 2.29 through 2.211 of the RFP for guidance.
Can we shrink sidewalk as needed to get around brick mailboxes and critical grading areas,
etc.?
a. No. The sidewalk width must be maintained throughout.
Section 3.1.13. states “may include, but are not limited to..”. Please clarify the scope of work
for plan development that is to be included in the proposal for these projects. Should it
include only the eight bulleted items?
a. “Plans shall be prepared to the level of detail and shall contain all necessary
information required for the project construction and review and/or approval by the
City.” The bulleted items are anticipated to be required. However, the Contractor
may require additional plan sheets and/or details to construct the design. For the
Land Disturbance Permit, the City requires a site plan and an ESPC Plan per Chapter
16 of the City’s Code of Ordinances. The latest version of the COD, Chapter 16, may
be found here http://library.municode.com/index.aspx?clientld=14784
Are grading plans acceptable in lieu of cross sections?
a. Yes. This would be up to the Contractor.
Are all 4” and above trees to be surveyed within 10’ of disturbance limits or just in the
professional landscaped areas along corridors and residences (ie.. Peachford Rd) within the
existing R/W? and/or construction easement areas if needed?
a. Alltrees must be surveyed. Per the City’s Tree Save Policy, any tree removed must
be documented.

10) Does the City’s GIS data contain tops and inverts for the existing storm sewer facilities?

a. No elevations are available only NE Coordinates.

11) Is the use of pervious concrete sidewalk allowable by the City in order to maintain the area

of impervious cover under 5,000 square feet?



a. The contractor may propose this as an alternate if it would result in a cost savings to
the City. Clearly indicate this under “Other Alternates” on the Cost sheet with the
associated deductive lump sum cost.

If the project consists of the addition or replacement of less than 5,000sf of
impervious surface area , measured on a per street basis, the water quality and
hydraulic study requirements of the Land Disturbance Permit are no longer
applicable.
12) Section 5.3 Section | — starts off ‘Each proposal’- Please clarify — one 20 page proposal
includes all five projects? Is the Table of Contents included in the 20 page count limit?

a. One 20 page proposal includes all five projects. The required spreadsheet should
allow the specifics of each project to be succinctly summarized within the page
limits of the technical proposal. This way, the proposal write up can be reserved for
ideas and/or issues that deserve a detailed write up. (Ex. VE Options or
Environmental Concerns not described in this RFP). “The title page will not be
counted in the total page title.”

13) Section 5.3 Section Il - Should a separate schedule be provided for each project location and
if/so to be included in 20 page count limit?

a. Asingle schedule should be provided that includes a design, permitting, and
construction phase for each sidewalk project. This sheet will count towards the 20
page limit.

14) Who is responsible for costs to relocate utilities that are within the existing right-of-way?

a. Refertosections 3.1.49 to 3.1.60 of the RFP.

15) For the Land Disturbance Permit, will the submittal and approval process be the same as
currently required for private development projects?

a. Yes.

16) Who is responsible for permitting fees for these projects? Who is responsible for NPDES
fees (if applicable) for these projects?

a. City permit fees will be waived. The contractor will be responsible for any other
permit fees.

17) What level of SUE is required for these projects?

a. The level of SUE required is to be decided upon by the Contractor. Therefore no
minimum level of SUE is specified. The contractor should employ whatever means
and methods are appropriate to 1) identify utility locations and potential conflicts
prior to construction and 2) avoid conflicts and damages to utilities.

18) Are any traffic calming measures mentioned in 2.1.1., 2.1.2. & 3.1.45. included within this
project's proposed scope or work or a future companion project?

a. There are no programmed projects for the traffic calming measures mentioned
above. Proposers are to provide add alternate costs for those described in 2.1.1 and
2.1.2. The water quality treatments referred to in 3.1.45 would be preferable to
using proprietary devices if they result in a cost savings to the City or would be
considered if they result in a minimal additional cost.

19) 2.1.2. - Will the City require the replacement of the crushed storm drain lids at the
intersection of Hensley Drive & Trumbell?

a. Yes.

20) Will the City require cleaning/flushing of existing storm sewer lines within the project areas?



a. If sediment from the construction enters and collects in the storm drain system,
then the City would require this.

21) 2.2.6. - In areas that the City allows a 2:1 slope, what is the preferred ground cover if not
grass?

a. The City’s preferred ground cover will be determined in context with the adjacent
landscaping. Typically loriope or shrubs are used. Interstate Lespedeza grass or
equivalent is acceptable for slopes greater than 3:1 along non-residential parcels.

22) There appears to be a contradiction in Mount Vernon Way's project descriptions between
1.1. & 2.1.1. Please confirm sidewalk is to be constructed on west side of Mount Vernon
Way.

a. See the response to #2.

23) 3.1.40. Please confirm it is not the intent of the City to correct or otherwise mitigate existing
non-conforming standards within the project areas as defined within Chapter 16 of the
City's Code of Ordinance.

a. Section 3.1.40 of the RFP addresses stormwater. The City does not intend as part of
this project to improve or upgrade the stormwater system beyond what is required
to satisfy stormwater requirements for the new sidewalk.

24) Will any bonding for this project be required?

a. Yes. Bid, performance, and payment bonds are required. Updated language has
been included in this Addendum.

25) How long will the civil design engineer have to design the project?

a. This schedule shall be determined by the team. The schedule to be included with
the proposal shall show the assumed timeline for the design.

26) While the remaining civil design work [drawings / specifications are being prepared]. Will
the City allow Robert Drive work to start?

a. The City will release each of the locations for construction as soon as all
requirements are met and an LDP may be issued.

27) Is this a two phase project?

a. This question is unclear.

28) Will the City provide two separate contracts, one for the design build civil engineers work
and one for the contractor construction work?

a. One Design-Build contract will be issued.

29) Who will pay the design civil engineers for this project?

a. The Contractor and Designer are responsible for making these arrangements. See
the response to #33.

30) Will the design civil engineers be solely hired by the contractor for this project?

a. Yes.

31) How can the time to do the project be determined when 90% of the project have not been
design?

a. The contractor should determine the schedule based on experience with similar
design- build projects.

32) Will the City provide a storage area for the contractor equipment / materials?

a. No.

33) Under the insurance requirement: are the City referring to the contractor or the design
engineers to carry professional error of omission insurance?

a. The Contractor will be expected to meet all of the insurance requirements of the
design-build team.



34) What if in the designing, cause for additions work sure as retaining walls and other related
work. How will the City made the adjustment?

a. As part of the design-build proposal, the Contractor/Designer is to anticipate the
work necessary to complete the project.

35) Contractors, usually don't have the professional error of omission insurance. Usually GL /
WC insurances to a certain limited.

a. See response to question #38.

36) We reviewed the Roberts Drive Plans and saw there were not three phase erosion
plans. Are three phase plans expected in the sidewalk plans, or is a “Location of BMPs” plan
sufficient here as well?

a. Provided that a State Stream Buffer Variance is not required and the project is not
within 200’ of a perennial State Water, projects less than one acre of disturbance
are not required to be submitted to the State for review. Instead they would be
reviewed by the City to obtain a Land Disturbance Permit, in which case, a single
phase BMP plan is suitable provided that the City Code of Ordinance regarding
ES&PC Plans is followed. Chapter 16 Article 5.50D provides a checklist of the City’s
requirements. These plans have not been reviewed and may not meet these
requirements. . See also Addendum #1 Item 3 and response to question #38.

37) Section 2.1.5. Roberts Drive — The RFP states required stormwater management
installations will need to be added to the plans. If comments are received during the
permitting process; how will comments be addressed and added to plans sealed by the LPA
Engineer-of-Record?

a. Electronic .dgn files of the plans on Roberts Drive will be provided to the awardee.

38) The provided 2012 plan set including erosion control plans for Roberts Drive do not appear
to meet current criteria. Has a previous approval been obtained or is it the responsibility of
the proposer to prepare ESPC Plans that meet current criteria?

a. Provided that a State Stream Buffer Variance is not required and the project is not
within 200’ of a perennial State Water, projects less than one acre of disturbance
are not required to be submitted to the State for review. Instead they would be
reviewed by the City to obtain a Land Disturbance Permit. Chapter 16 Article 5.50D
provides a checklist of the City’s requirements. These plans have not been reviewed
and may not meet these requirements. See also Addendum #1 Item 3 and
response to question #36.

39) Roberts Drive hydrology study mentions well defined channel running along west side of
Roberts Drive and jurisdictional water delineation? Who is responsible for cost of
jurisdictional water delineations for projects?

a. See Addendum #1 Item 3

40) Are the mitigation costs associated with a stream buffer encroachment variance through the
Georgia EPD to be included within the Lump Sum cost?

a. The Contractor should include mitigation costs in the Lump Sum Cost.
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The contractor agrees to provide all work to complete the project described in this document for the
amount listed below.

Required Costs:

Roberts Road Project Cost: lump sum
Mount Vernon Way Project Cost: lump sum
Hensley Drive Project Cost lump sum
Peachford Road Project Cost lump sum
Dunwoody Park Project Cost lump sum
Total Project Cost excluding items listed below lump sum

Required Add Alternates:

Cost for add alternate for Hensley speed table lump sum

Cost for add alternate for Mount Vernon Way raised crosswalk lump sum

Other Alternates Proposed As Determined by the Contractor:
(Additional items may be submitted on a separate page.)

Description Lump Sum Cost
Unit Prices
1. Graded Aggregate Base /Ton
2. No. 57 stone /Ton
3. Excavation of unsatisfactory materials
and replacement w/suitable soil material ICY

4. Excavation of unsatisfactory materials
and replacement w/ #57 crushed stone ICY




	RFP 13-16 Addendum I
	RFP 13-16 Design Build Sidewalks Addendum #1 Costs

